
 
 
 

 
 

Sunshine Law Request  
from the  

Missouri Attorney General’s Office 
  







ATTORNEY GENERAL OF MISSOURI 

ERIC SCHMITT 

Custodian of Records 
North Kansas City School District 
2000 NE 46th St. 
Kansas City, Missouri 64116 

May 23, 2022 

Sent via email to peggy. cole@nkcschools.org 

RE: Sunshine Law Request #1 Follow-Up 

Dear Ms. Cole: 

Thank you for providing records in response to the Office's April 11, 2022 Sunshine 
Law request. This letter is in follow-up to the District's response. 

In Request #3, the Office asked for the following documents pursuant to Missouri's 
Sunshine law: 

3. All presentations and training materials provided to the district by Sophie
Solutions, or any other consulting company or entity as described in request
number one. As used in this request, "presentations and training materials"
means any document - whether hard copy or electronic - provided or used
during any portion of justice, diversity, equity or inclusion training including,
but not limited to, Power Point presentations, charts, graphs, pictograms,
articles or demonstrative exhibits.

Although the District produced records identifying at least two dozen training sessions conducted 
by three different consultants (Sophie Solutions; EduSigner, LLC; and Educational Equity 
Consultants, LLC), the District did not provide a single document responsive to Request #3. Is it 
the District's position that it has no records responsive to Request #3? Please confirm if this is 
true. If it is not true, please produce any responsive records immediately. 

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. 

Supreme Court Building 
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April 8, 2022 
 
 
Custodian of Records 
North Kansas City School District 
2000 NE 46th St. 
Kansas City, Missouri  64116 
Sent via email to peggy.cole@nkcschools.org  
 

RE: Sunshine Law Request 
 
Dear Ms. Cole: 
 
 I write to request copies of the following public records pursuant to Chapter 610 of the 
Missouri Revised Statutes: 
 

1. All contracts, including scope of work agreements, with any consulting company or entity 
(whether for profit, or not-for-profit) that provides justice, diversity, equity or inclusion 
training (or any similar training regardless of how titled or referenced) entered into by the 
North Kansas City School District during calendar years 2020, 2021 and 2022 including, 
but not limited to, any contract for services with Sophic Solutions. 
 

2. All invoices, paid and unpaid, from Sophic Solutions, or any other consulting company or 
entity as described in request number one with which the district engaged, received by 
North Kansas City School District during calendar years 2020, 2021 and 2022.   
 

3. All presentations and training materials provided to the district by Sophic Solutions, or any 
other consulting company or entity as described in request number one.  As used in this 
request, “presentations and training materials” means any document – whether hard copy 
or electronic – provided or used during any portion of justice, diversity, equity or inclusion 
training including, but not limited to, Power Point presentations, charts, graphs, 
pictograms, articles or demonstrative exhibits. 

 
I request that all responsive records be produced electronically, or be made available 

immediately for inspection. 
 
This request seeks documents that are in the public interest because they are likely to 

contribute to a better understanding of the operations or activities of North Kansas City School 
District.  In addition, this is not a request for commercial purposes.  For these reasons, pursuant to 
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§ 610.026.1(1), RSMo, the Missouri Attorney General’s Office requests a waiver of any fees 
associated with processing this request for records. 
 

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter.   
 

Sincerely, 
 
 

Justin D. Smith 
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Williams, Kiley

From: Werdehausen, Megan
Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2022 7:52 PM
To: Smith, Justin
Subject: Fw: Sunshine Law Request

From: Peggy Cole <peggy.cole@nkcschools.org> 
Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2022 3:20:20 PM 
To: Werdehausen, Megan 
Subject: Re: Sunshine Law Request  
  
Dear Megan, 
 
I am the custodian of records for the North Kansas City School District (the “District”). I am responding to your request for 
information received April 11, 2022, pursuant to Missouri’s Sunshine Law § 610.010, RSMo, et seq. As the Custodian of Records, I am 
required to provide the information you requested within three (3) days of your request or, provide a detailed reason explaining the 
need for additional time. Due to the time needed to collect the requested records from different sources within the district, your 
request cannot be filled within the three (3) days prescribed by law. We anticipate being able to provide you with the requested 
records on Monday, April 18, 2022. The district will not charge to fulfill your request. 
 
Peggy Cole 
Custodian of Records 
North Kansas City Schools 
 
 

From: Werdehausen, Megan <Megan.Werdehausen@ago.mo.gov> 
Date: Monday, April 11, 2022 at 10:16 AM 
To: Peggy Cole <peggy.cole@nkcschools.org> 
Subject: Sunshine Law Request 

Please see the attached request. 
  
Thank you, 
  
Megan Werdehausen | Executive Secretary 
Missouri Attorney General’s Office 
207 West High St 
Jefferson City, MO 65101 
(573) 751‐8807 
Megan.Werdehausen@ago.mo.gov  
  
This email message, including the attachments, is from the Missouri Attorney General’s Office. It is for the sole use of 
the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information, including that covered by § 32.057, 
RSMo. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, 
please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message. Thank you.  



May 23, 2022 
 
Custodian of Records 
North Kansas City School District 
2000 NE 46th St. 
Kansas City, Missouri  64116 
Sent via email to peggy.cole@nkcschools.org  
 

RE: Sunshine Law Request #1 Follow-Up 
 
Dear Ms. Cole: 
 
 Thank you for providing records in response to the Office’s April 8, 2022 Sunshine Law 
request.  This letter is in follow-up to the District’s response. 
 
 In Request #3, the Office asked for the following documents pursuant to Missouri’s 
Sunshine law: 
 

3. All presentations and training materials provided to the district by Sophic 
Solutions, or any other consulting company or entity as described in request 
number one.  As used in this request, “presentations and training materials” 
means any document – whether hard copy or electronic – provided or used 
during any portion of justice, diversity, equity or inclusion training including, 
but not limited to, Power Point presentations, charts, graphs, pictograms, 
articles or demonstrative exhibits. 

 
Although the District produced records identifying at least two dozen training sessions conducted 
by three different consultants (Sophic Solutions; EduSigner, LLC; and Educational Equity 
Consultants, LLC), the District did not provide a single document responsive to Request #3.  Is it 
the District’s position that it has no records responsive to Request #3?  Please confirm if this is 
true.  If it is not true, please produce any responsive records immediately. 
 

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter.   
 

Sincerely, 
          
 
 

Justin D. Smith 

mailto:peggy.cole@nkcschools.org
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Williams, Kiley

From: Peggy Cole <peggy.cole@nkcschools.org>
Sent: Wednesday, May 18, 2022 3:19 PM
To: Werdehausen, Megan
Subject: Re: Sunshine Law Request
Attachments: EduSigner Signed Documents 10.27.20 fully signed.pdf; 2020-21 Educational Equity 

Consultants Service Agreement 10.27.20 fully signed.pdf

Hi Megan, 
 
I have attached the two single items that were in the shared folder, and created a new link for the remaining records. 
 
https://nkcschools.box.com/s/9h59eztlh0t3xfezmc2b0yn3pp39xj9g  
 
Let me know if you have any issues. Hopefully, you will be able to open, download and save the documents. (Fingers crossed.) If not, 
I can string them into one .pdf and send that way.   
 
Thank you. 
 
Peggy 
 
 

From: "Werdehausen, Megan" <Megan.Werdehausen@ago.mo.gov> 
Date: Tuesday, May 17, 2022 at 10:18 AM 
To: Peggy Cole <peggy.cole@nkcschools.org> 
Subject: RE: Sunshine Law Request 
 

Good Morning, Peggy‐ 
 
Just following up on the below. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Megan Werdehausen | Executive Secretary 
Missouri Attorney General’s Office 
207 West High St 
Jefferson City, MO 65101 
(573) 751‐8807 
Megan.Werdehausen@ago.mo.gov  
 

From: Werdehausen, Megan  
Sent: Thursday, May 12, 2022 1:18 PM 
To: 'Peggy Cole' <peggy.cole@nkcschools.org> 
Subject: RE: Sunshine Law Request 
 

Good Afternoon, Peggy‐ 
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There seems to be an issue with the box.com link.  It now says the link has been removed or is unavailable to 
us.  Can you please provide us access, so we can complete the download of the documents? 
 
Thank you! 
 
Megan Werdehausen | Executive Secretary 
Missouri Attorney General’s Office 
207 West High St 
Jefferson City, MO 65101 
(573) 751‐8807 
Megan.Werdehausen@ago.mo.gov  
 

From: Peggy Cole [mailto:peggy.cole@nkcschools.org]  
Sent: Monday, April 18, 2022 4:31 PM 
To: Werdehausen, Megan <Megan.Werdehausen@ago.mo.gov> 
Subject: Re: Sunshine Law Request 
 

Good afternoon, 
 
Please find the following link to documents responsive to your April 11, 2022 sunshine law request to the North Kansas 
City School District.  
 
https://nkcschools.box.com/s/1frph5cyzvd297kgxbtaks1ycfxscuck  
 
Thank you. 
 
Peggy Cole 
Custodian of Records 
North Kansas City Schools 
 

From: Werdehausen, Megan <Megan.Werdehausen@ago.mo.gov> 
Date: Monday, April 11, 2022 at 10:16 AM 
To: Peggy Cole <peggy.cole@nkcschools.org> 
Subject: Sunshine Law Request 

Please see the attached request. 
  
Thank you, 
  
Megan Werdehausen | Executive Secretary 
Missouri Attorney General’s Office 
207 West High St 
Jefferson City, MO 65101 
(573) 751‐8807 
Megan.Werdehausen@ago.mo.gov  
  
This email message, including the attachments, is from the Missouri Attorney General’s Office. It is for the sole use of 
the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information, including that covered by § 32.057, 
RSMo. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, 
please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message. Thank you.  
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